
TOWN OF FLORENCE 
REGULAR MEETING  

AGENDA 
 

PURSUANT TO A.R.S. § 38-431.02, NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN TO THE MEMBERS 
OF THE FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL AND TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC THAT THE 
FLORENCE TOWN COUNCIL WILL HOLD A MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC ON 
MONDAY, JULY 15, 2013, AT 6:00 P.M., IN THE CHAMBERS OF TOWN HALL, 
LOCATED AT 775 NORTH MAIN STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. ROLL CALL: Mayor Rankin___; Vice-Mayor Smith___;   

Councilmembers:  Tom Celaya___; Bill Hawkins___;  
Ruben Montaño___; Tara Walter___; Vallarie Woolridge___;  

 
3. INVOCATION PERFORMED BY REVEREND DONALD WOOLRIDGE, UNION 

BAPTIST CHURCH. 
 
4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  

Call to the Public for public comment on issues within the jurisdiction of the 
Town Council.  Council rules limit public comment to three minutes.  
Individual Councilmembers may respond to criticism made by those 
commenting, may ask staff to review a matter raised or may ask that a matter 
be put on a future agenda.  However, members of the Council shall not 
discuss or take action on any matter during an open call to the public unless 
the matters are properly noticed for discussion and legal action. 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS AND PRESENTATIONS 
a. Public Hearing on Conditional Use Permit application for a proposed 

Medical Marijuana Dispensary on a Highway Business Commercial zoned 
property located at 801 North Pinal Parkway Avenue, Florence, Arizona; 
and for Discussion/Approval/Disapproval of said application. 
 

b. Presentation by Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce recognizing the 
Business of the Month. 
 

c. Presentation of the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce’s Annual 
Report.  

 
7. CONSENT: All items indicated by an (*) will be handled by a single vote as part 

of the consent agenda, unless a Councilmember or a member of the public 
objects at the time the agenda item is called. 
 
a. *Authorization to forward a favorable recommendation to the Arizona 

Department of Liquor Licenses and Control on behalf of the Greater 
Florence Chamber of Commerce’s application for a Special Event Liquor 

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



License for September 5, 2013, and October 3, 2013, from 4:30 p.m. to 6:30 
p.m. for their First Thursday events.    
 

b. *Authorization to enter into a lease agreement with Carol Jonson (Silver 
King Hair Co.), for Suite 201, in the Silver King Market Place. 
 

c. *Resolution No. 1405-13: adoption of A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, ADOPTING THE CORRECTED 
TOWN OF FLORENCE FY2013-2014 EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATION PLAN. 
 

d. *Approval of the Mutual Protection and Law Enforcement Agreement 
between the Tohono O’Odham Nations and Town of Florence.   

 
e. *Receive and file the following board and commission minutes: 

i. Receive and file the September 25, 2012 Planning and Zoning 
Commission minutes. 

ii. Receive and file the December 18, 2012 Redevelopment Commission   
minutes. 

 
8. MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
9. CALL TO THE PUBLIC  

 
10. CALL TO THE COUNCIL 

 
11. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Council may go into Executive Session at any time during the meeting for the 
purpose of obtaining legal advice from the Town’s Attorney(s) on any of the 
agenda items pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3). 
 
POSTED THE 11th DAY JUNE 2013, BY LISA GARCIA, TOWN CLERK, AT 775 
NORTH MAIN STREET, 1000 SOUTH WILLOW STREET, FLORENCE, ARIZONA 
AND AT WWW.FLORENCEAZ.GOV. 
 
***PURSUANT TO TITLE II OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA), 
THE TOWN OF FLORENCE DOES NOT DISCRIMINATE ON THE BASIS OF 
DISABILITY REGARDING ADMISSION TO PUBLIC MEETINGS.  PERSONS WITH A 
DISABILITY MAY REQUEST REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS BY 
CONTACTING THE TOWN OF FLORENCE ADA COORDINATOR, AT (520) 868-
7574 OR (520) 868-7502 TDD. REQUESTS SHOULD BE MADE AS EARLY AS 
POSSIBLE TO ALLOW TIME TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATION.***  

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight

mariah
Highlight



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
6a.  

MEETING DATE:  July 15, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Community Development 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Mark Eckhoff, AICP 
                                      Community Development Director 
                                       
SUBJECT:  Healing Healthcare 3 Inc. Medical Marijuana 

Dispensary (PZC-24-13-CUP) 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
   Healing Healthcare 3 Inc. 
PZC-24-13-CUP 

July 15, 2013 
Page 1 of 9 

 
Motion to deny a Conditional Use Permit application submitted by Rakesh 
Pahwa/Healing Healthcare 3 Inc. for a proposed Medical Marijuana Dispensary on a 
Highway Business Commercial (B-2) zoned property located at 801 North Pinal 
Parkway, Florence, Arizona. 
  
Staff notes that no resolution accompanies this this report as, beyond the compatibility 
concerns presented with this application, this application should not be approved as it is 
in direct violation of Section 152.04 (A) (2) of the Town’s Land Usage Code contained 
within the Town’s Code of Ordinances. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
On November 2, 2010, the voters of the State of Arizona approved Proposition 203, the 
“Arizona Medical Marijuana Act”, which created a distinction between the medical and 
non-medical uses of marijuana under Arizona law for persons suffering from debilitating 
medical conditions who are in need of marijuana for medical purposes and who obtain 
and use medical marijuana under the circumstances specified in Arizona Revised 
Statutes, Title 36, A.R.S. § 36-2801 et seq. The Department of Health Services 
(AZDHS) is the State agency charged with regulating medical marijuana dispensaries, 
cultivation facilities and issuing licenses to prospective applicants.   

 
Under the new State law, cities and towns were allowed to adopt reasonable regulations 
regarding the location and operations of medical marijuana dispensaries and growing 
operations. As such, the Town of Florence adopted new codes related to this new State 
law so that there were clear and concise local regulations pertaining to the emerging 
medical marijuana industry.  

 



   Healing Healthcare 3 Inc. 
PZC-24-13-CUP 

July 15, 2013 
Page 2 of 9 

The applicant proposes to utilize the subject location to provide cannabis products for 
patients who have received a physician’s medical recommendation to utilize medical 
marijuana for the management of their medical afflictions. According to the applicant, 
the Department of Health Services has granted the applicant the ability to operate this 
business in this region pending local approvals. 
 

 
Vicinity Map 

(With 300’ Buffer) 
 

 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
This Conditional Use Permit request is for approval of an application by Rakesh 
Pahwa/Healing Healthcare 3 Inc. to allow for a proposed medical marijuana dispensary 
in a Highway Business Commercial (B-2) Zoning District on property located at 801 
North Pinal Parkway Avenue. The site is the former location of a Big O Tires business 
that has been vacant for close to five years. 
 
The Town of Florence adopted a comprehensive approach to the new State law with 
regard to medical marijuana facilities. First and foremost, the new medical marijuana 
industry allowed by State law presented the need to better define the types of uses 
allowable under the new State law. Once those new uses were more clearly defined in a 
new chapter of the Town Code (Chapter 152) titled Medical Marijuana, the Town then 



   Healing Healthcare 3 Inc. 
PZC-24-13-CUP 

July 15, 2013 
Page 3 of 9 

developed requirements pertaining to the location and operation of these new uses.  
Locational criteria is first defined at the Zoning District level and then narrowed down by 
additional locational criteria, such as the distances between similar uses, distances to 
schools and other factors. 
 
In general, the Town’s medical marijuana ordinance allows all of the cultivation, 
operation and dispensary related medical marijuana uses to occur within the Town’s 
Light Industrial (LI) Zoning District with a Conditional Use Permit (CUP). In addition, 
dispensary facilities are also allowed within the Town’s Highway Business Commercial 
(B-2) Zoning District with a Conditional Use Permit. Any type of new facility related to 
this ordinance is subject to meeting the terms of their respective CUP and also would 
need to obtain require zoning clearance from the Town. In addition, all such facilities 
must be in compliance with State law and the AZDHS rules and regulations.  
 
The proposed dispensary facility would operate out of approximately 5,400 square foot 
building existing on the property. The applicant has produced plans to separate the 
building with a framed wall in order to comply with the 2,500 square foot limit on the 
dispensary size per Town codes.  The unused portion of the building could be used for 
compatible commercial retail uses. 
 
The building is proposed to include a reception desk, cashier area and a private patient 
conference room to discuss the medical marijuana products that will be available. Once 
a patient selects a product, it will be purchased from an automated dispensing machine 
inside the building. Other areas of the dispensary will be off limits to patients, including 
the medical director’s office.   
 
The facility would also include a prep room where the marijuana product will be held in a 
secured safe and can be packaged for distribution; supply closets; an employee 
kitchenette and lounge; restrooms; utility areas; and a file room where medical records 
will be kept.  
 
The facility would have adequate parking and include parking spots designated for 
those patients who are physically disabled.  There would be a wheelchair access ramp 
and the campus will be well lit area at night. The applicant has prepared a detailed 
security plan in order to maintain the security of the site and the building. 
 
The dispensary owner plans on having three full time employees on site during the 
hours of operation.  Hours of operation for the dispensary would be limited per Town 
codes. As such, the facility will have operating hours not earlier than 8:00 a.m. and no 
later than 8:00 p.m.   
 
The Medical Director for Healing Healthcare 3 Inc. of Florence will be Donald W. Hill, 
M.D., F.A.C.P., Chief Executive Officer. Dr. Hill is a licensed physician in Arizona in the 
practice of hematology and medical oncology.  He is board certified in internal medicine 
and also medical oncology.  Dr. Hill has written and published 15 scientific articles to his 
credit and has established cancer clinics in Arizona over the last 24 years. Dr. Hill 



   Healing Healthcare 3 Inc. 
PZC-24-13-CUP 

July 15, 2013 
Page 4 of 9 

oversees the only active experimental cancer treatment clinical trial program between 
Tucson and Phoenix.  Furthermore, Dr. Hill was the only physician in the State of 
Arizona with a Schedule I medical marijuana license from 2007 until 2010.  
 
When the Planning and Zoning Commission and Town Council consider a Conditional 
Use Permit request the applicant must show the following: 
 
 
A. The site of the proposed use and the surrounding land uses; 
 
Finding:  
 
The site is zoned Highway Business Commercial (B-2). The proposed site was formerly 
utilized as a Big O Tires business.  The site is adjacent to the Pinal County Superior 
Court and Administration Offices to the north, Behavioral Systems Southwest Inc. to the 
east and a McDonald’s Restaurant to the south.   
 
The subject site has established access for customers off of Pinal Parkway/Highway 79 
and shared access with McDonalds off of Diversion Dam Road.   
 
 

Zoning Classification Existing Use

North Light Industrial (LI)
Pinal County Superior Court 
and Administration Offices

East
Highway Business Commercial 

(B-2) Vacant Office Building

South
Highway Business Commercial 

(B-2) McDonald's Resturant

West
Planned Unit Development 

(PUD) Vacant Land

Onsite
Highway Business Commercial 

(B-2) Vacant Commercial Building

Surrounding Land Uses and Zoning Districts:

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   Healing Healthcare 3 Inc. 
PZC-24-13-CUP 

July 15, 2013 
Page 5 of 9 

Based on testimony presented at the June 20, 2013 Planning and Zoning Commission 
meeting that was subsequently confirmed to be true, staff finds that the subject property 
is less than the required minimum 660 feet away from a public library, which is 
considered a sensitive use. The public library facility is the Pinal County Law Library 
located within the Pinal County Superior Court building immediately north of the subject 
site.  
 
B. Access to the site; and 

 
Finding:  
 
The subject site has established access for customers off of Pinal Parkway/Highway 79 
and shared access with McDonalds off of Diversion Dam Road.  There is cross access 
with another vacant pad (former Grease Monkey facility) on the east end of the site and 
the McDonalds restaurant to the south.   
 
The parking lot for the building would be re-paved and striped to define parking required 
by the Town of Florence.  The site will require painted directional arrows to help guide 
vehicular traffic on and off the site and provide curbing on the northwest side to limit 
access.   
 
C.   The impact on adjoining and surrounding property if the application is 
approved. 
 
Finding:  
 
The Town’s General Plan identifies this area along Highway 79 as a future business 
and mixed use corridor. The site’s General Plan land use and existing zoning 
designations support this site being used for traditional commercial purposes.   
 
The evaluation of potential impacts of a conditionally permitted use to adjoining and/or 
surrounding properties is a factor that requires careful consideration. In general, a 
conditionally permitted use is a use that might work at one location within a given zoning 
district, but might be inappropriate at another location within the same zoning district.  
 
The following have expressed concerns about the potential compatibility of this use with 
surrounding properties, existing developments and proposed developments.  
 

•  McDonalds Restaurant licensee Robert L. Souza operates the McDonald’s 
immediately adjacent to this proposed facility. Mr. Souza contends now, as he 
did when a previous similar request was under review for this site, that the 
proposed use poses a threat to the reputation of his family business. Mr. Souza 
also shared his concerns at the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting on 
June 20, 2013. 
 



   Healing Healthcare 3 Inc. 
PZC-24-13-CUP 

July 15, 2013 
Page 6 of 9 

• The Arizona Department of Corrections (ADC) previously expressed a strong 
opposition to having a medical marijuana dispensary being located adjacent to 
their Florence facilities. An updated letter from ADC adamantly restates their 
continued opposition. ADC, along with the GEO Group, who contract with ADC, 
shared their concerns at the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting on June 
20, 2013. 

 
•  Lynn Londen represents Yole, LLC, which owns property across the highway 

from this proposed facility. Mrs. Londen has partnered with the Town on the 
Territory Square efforts and suggests in her letter that this use would be 
counterproductive to the efforts made on the Territory Square project. 

 
•  M. Lando Voyles, Pinal County Attorney, has expressed concerns about the 

proposed use. Mr. Voyles has given staff a letter stating that proposed  medical 
marijuana dispensary will be operating within 660 feet of a Sensitive Use 
(school, a place of worship and a library) if allowed to open. 
 

• Dr. Lance Mollenhauer, Florence Chiropractic, opposes the medical marijuana 
dispensary being located in close proximity (within 300 feet) to his Chiropractic 
Clinic.  
 

• Steven L. Doran, Program Director with Behavioral Systems Southwest Florence 
Residential Re-Entry Center, opposes the proposed medical marijuana 
dispensary location.  Mr. Doran’s letter and statements made at the June 20, 
2013 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting expressed concern that the 
proposed dispensary location would be within 660 feet of a “Place of Worship or 
Religious Assembly”.  
 

• Sheri George with the San Tan Valley Substance Abuse Coalition stated their 
group’s opposition to this application at the Planning and Zoning Commission 
meeting on June 20, 2013. 
 

• Daniel Kingston of Phoenix stated his opposition to this application at the 
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting on June 20, 2013. 

 
• Will Jamieson of Phoenix stated his opposition to this application at the Planning 

and Zoning Commission meeting on June 20, 2013. 
 

•  Matthew Hum of Scottsdale stated that he supported this application at the 
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting on June 20, 2013. 

 
• Ruben Montaño, Florence Town Council, made a statement regarding this 

application at the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting on June 20, 2013. 
 



   Healing Healthcare 3 Inc. 
PZC-24-13-CUP 

July 15, 2013 
Page 7 of 9 

•  The Mayor and Town Council previously denied a Conditional Use Permit 
request for this site. Though this past decision is not binding on the current 
application and this is not an identical application, staff contends that their denial 
for non-compatibility reasons should be taken into consideration.  

 
The following have expressed their support for the Healing Healthcare 3 Inc. Medical 
Marijuana Dispensary Conditional Use Permit application: 
 

• Rodney Rhodes, Town Resident, supports the Healing Healthcare 3 Inc. Medical 
Marijuana Dispensary.  He has provided an e-mail statement of support. 
 

• Gem Cox, Florence Business Owner, supports the proposed medical marijuana 
dispensary. He has provided an e-mail statement of support. 

 
In making its recommendation, the Planning and Zoning Commission and Town Council 
may include conditions which are deemed necessary to protect the public health, safety, 
and general welfare. These conditions may include, but are not limited to:   
 

1. Regulation of use; 
2. Special yard requirements; 
3. Special buffers, fences or walls; 
4. Special parking areas; 
5. Street dedications and/or improvements or appropriate bonds; 
6. Regulation of access points; 
7. Sign restrictions; 
8. Required maintenance of yard; 
9. Regulations of odors, noise, light or other special environmental factors; 
10. Restrictions of hours of activity; 
11. Duration of use; 
12. Completion of development; and 
13. Other conditions which will make the proposed use more compatible and 

harmonious with the surrounding land uses. In no case, however, shall these 
conditions be less restrictive than those found in the existing zoning 
classification. 

 
In addition to any of the above special conditions, the Planning and Zoning Commission 
and Town Council shall impose the following general requirements on every Conditional 
Use Permit which is granted:   
 

1. No Conditional Use approval shall be final until all conditions imposed have 
been met; 

 
2. All of the special conditions shall constitute restrictions which run with the 

land and which shall be binding upon the owner of the land, successors or 
assigns; 

 



   Healing Healthcare 3 Inc. 
PZC-24-13-CUP 

July 15, 2013 
Page 8 of 9 

3. The special conditions imposed by the Planning and Zoning Commission 
and/or Council shall be consented to in writing by the applicant prior to 
issuance of a Conditional Use Permit; and 

 
4. The Resolution of the Council granting the application together with all 

consent forms shall be recorded by the recorder of the county. 
 
FINDINGS: 

Staff and the Planning and Zoning Commission present the following findings for the 
consideration of the Mayor and Town Council.  

 
1. Public comments on this request call into the potentially compatibility of this use with 

surrounding properties. 
 

2. Public comments on this request question the impact of this use on surrounding 
businesses, proposed businesses and the Town as a whole. 
 

3. The Arizona Department of Corrections and the GEO Group oppose this type of use 
in close proximity to their correctional facilities as it may present public safety 
concerns and could have negative impacts on their programming and rehabilitation 
efforts. 

 

4. A Medical Marijuana Dispensary is a conditionally permitted use in a Highway 
Business Commercial (B-2) Zoning District, which means that it is a use that can be 
carefully evaluated and not allowed should it be deemed inappropriate for a specific 
location. 

 
5. The proposed use would be incompatible with the Town’s visionary plans for the 

Territory Square project, which has been promoted in various Town marketing 
materials and on the Town webpage. 

 
ADDITIONAL FINDING: 
 
Based on testimony presented at the June 20, 2013 Planning and Zoning Commission 
meeting that was subsequently confirmed to be true, staff finds that the subject property 
is less than the required minimum 660 feet away from a public library, which is 
considered a sensitive use. The public library facility is the Pinal County Law Library 
located within the Pinal County Superior Court building immediately north of the subject 
site. As such, this application should not be approved as it is in direct violation of 
Section 152.04 (A) (2) of the Town’s Land Usage Code contained within the Town’s 
Code of Ordinances.  



   Healing Healthcare 3 Inc. 
PZC-24-13-CUP 

July 15, 2013 
Page 9 of 9 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 

Town Staff has complied with all applicable Town requirements and Arizona Revised 
Statutes regarding public participation. Public notice for the Planning and Zoning 
Commission Public Hearing was mailed to all property owners within three hundred 
(300) feet of the site.   

 
Property posting for notice of public hearings for a Conditional Use Permit was posted 
on the site per Town requirements.  Advertisements in the local Town paper have been 
posted per Town requirements. Under Arizona Revised Statutes, Title 9, Section-462.04 
and Town of Florence Development Code, a public hearing is required for a Conditional 
Use Permit.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
Unable to determine as there is no long term track record of this type of use in Arizona, 
the number of potential patients at this facility is unknown and the amount of product or 
merchandise that could be sold at this facility is unknown.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Based on the findings on this application, staff forwarded an unfavorable 
recommendation on this application to the Planning and Zoning Commission. 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission concurred with staff’s recommendation, which 
was further supported by additional testimony during the June 20, 2013 Planning and 
Zoning Commission meeting, and has forwarded a unanimous unfavorable 
recommendation on this Conditional Use Permit case to the Mayor and Town Council. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Application Materials 
 
Letters/correspondence of support and opposition 

































































































































































































 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
7a.  

  

MEETING DATE:  July 15, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia 
                                  Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk 
 
SUBJECT:   Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce  
                    Special Event Liquor License Application    

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
Subject: Special Event Liquor License           Meeting Date: July 15, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 

 
Motion to forward a favorable recommendation to the Arizona Department of Liquor 
Licenses and Control on behalf of the Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce’s 
application for a Special Event Liquor License for September 5, and October 3, 2013 
from 4:30 p.m. to 6:30 p.m. for the First Thursday Events.    
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
The purpose of a Special Event License is to allow charitable, civic, fraternal, political, 
or religious organizations to sell and serve spirituous liquor for consumption as a 
fundraiser.  Special event licenses may be issued for no more than a cumulative total of 
ten (10) days in a calendar year.  The fee for a Special Event License is $25 per day, 
payable to the Arizona Department of Liquor License and Control.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends the Council forward a favorable recommendation to the Arizona 
Department of Liquor Licenses and Control. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

Application 













 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
  7b. 

MEETING DATE:  July 15, 2015 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Administration 
 
STAFF PRESENTER: Lisa Garcia 
                                    Deputy Town Manager/Town Clerk 
 
SUBJECT:    Silver King Lease Agreement Renewal with  
                   Carol Johnson (Silver King Hair Co.) for Suite 201 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Silver King Lease Agreement - Silver King Hair Co.             Meeting Date: July 15, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
A motion to approve a lease agreement with Carol Johnson (Silver King Hair Co.), for 
Suite 201, in the Silver King Market Place. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Carol Johnson, owner of Silver King Hair Co., is seeking to renew a lease for Suite 201, 
which is the south suite on the second floor.  Silver King Hair Co. is a hair salon.  Ms. 
Johnson has over 25 years of owning and operating hair salons in the cities of Bisbee, 
Sierra Vista, and Page, Arizona.  She is a 4th generation hairstylist.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
The term of the lease is from August 1, 2013, to July 31, 2014.  The monthly rent will be 
$121.33. The tenant will pay the Town $444.08, per month for utilities. The utility 
payment may be adjusted twice a year to better reflect the total cost. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the lease with Carol Johnson, owner of Silver King Hair 
Co.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Lease Agreement  
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SILVER KING MARKET PLACE LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
 
 
 
 

TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA, 
an Arizona municipal corporation 

 
AND 

 
Carol Johnson 

a single woman, on her own behalf 
 

(Silver King Hair Co.) 
 
 
 

DATE:  August 1, 2013 
 



Page 2 of 15 

SILVER KING MARKET PLACE LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
This Commercial Lease Agreement ("Lease") is made and entered into on the ____ day of 
____________, 2013 by TOWN OF FLORENCE, ARIZONA, a municipal corporation, 
hereinafter called "Landlord" and CAROL JOHNSON, a single woman, on her own behalf, 
hereinafter called “Tenant". 
 
1. LEASED PREMISES 
 
For and in consideration of the rent to be paid and of the covenants and agreements of the Tenant 
as hereinafter set forth, Landlord does hereby lease 728 square feet to Tenant of the premises 
located at 440 N. Main Street, Suite 201, Florence, Arizona, also known as the Silver King 
Market Place, and hereinafter referred to as the “Premises”, or, the “Leased Premises”. The 
Leased Premises are also described as Suite 201, which is located at the South end of the 
Premises on the 2nd floor. 
 
2. TERM 
The Lease term shall begin on the 1st day of August, 2013, and end on the 31st day of July, 
2014 (the “Term”).  
 
3. EXTENSIONS  
 
The parties hereto may elect to extend the Term upon such terms and conditions as may be 
agreed upon in writing and signed by the parties at the time of any such election, provided that 
Tenant gives notice of its request to extend the Term no later than sixty (60) days prior to the 
expiration of the Term. If Tenant does not elect to extend the Term in accordance with this 
paragraph, this Lease shall end on the 31st day of July, 2014 (the “Expiration Date”) and 
thereafter Tenant may only occupy the Premises on a month-to-month basis. Such month-to-
month tenancy may be terminated by Landlord upon thirty (30) days notice to Tenant. 
Landlord’s acceptance of rent payments after the Expiration Date shall not constitute a renewal 
of this Lease Agreement.  
 
4. RENTS 
 
Rent shall be paid at the rate of one hundred twenty-one dollars, thirty-three cents ($121.33) 
per month for the duration of the lease. In addition to the rent, the tenant is responsible for their 
portion of the commercial property lease transaction privilege tax and government property lease 
excise tax. Each monthly payment of rent due thereafter shall be payable on the first day of each 
calendar month for the balance of the Term. Payment of rent shall be made to Landlord at Town 
of Florence, P.O. Box 2670, 775 North Main Street, Florence, Arizona 85132, or at such other 
place designated by written notice from Landlord. The rental payment amount for any partial 
calendar months included in the lease term shall be prorated on a daily basis. If rent is not 
received by the close of the 5th business day then the late fee of $25.00 will be added to the 
Tenant’s account. 
 
5. SECURITY DEPOSIT 



Page 3 of 15 

 
The Tenant has deposited with the Landlord the sum of eight hundred dollars ($800.00) as 
security for the full and faithful performance by the Tenant of all the terms of this lease required 
to be performed by the Tenant. Such sum shall be returned to the Tenant after the expiration of 
this lease, provided the Tenant has fully and faithfully carried out all of its terms. At the 
expiration of this Lease or such other time as Tenant may request the return of the Security 
Deposit, Landlord shall make an inspection of the Leased Premises and deduct from the Security 
Deposit such sums as are necessary to repair and refurbish the Leased Premises to the condition 
which existed prior to Tenant’s occupancy thereof. In the event of a bona fide sale of the 
property of which the Leased Premises are a part, the Landlord shall have the right to transfer the 
security to the purchaser to be held under the terms of this lease, and the Landlord shall be 
released from all liability for the return of such security to the Tenant.  
 
6. PURPOSE 
 
A. The Landlord is maintaining the Silver King Market Place for the development of new 
businesses within the Downtown area of the Town of Florence. It is the Landlord’s desire to help 
in the creation of successful businesses by providing the necessary environment to help 
businesses survive. 
 
B. Tenant shall use the Leased Premises for the purpose of conducting the business of a Hair 
Salon known as the “Silver King Hair Co.” .  In the event Tenant desires to use the Leased 
Premises for a different business purpose not described above, Tenant shall first apply, in 
writing, for approval for such use to the Town of Florence and the Redevelopment Commission. 
As a further condition of the lease, Tenant must also maintain regular business hours and be open 
for at least thirty five (35) hours per week with exception of holidays.  When business 
enhancement classes are offered by the Town of Florence, Florence Main Street Program, and/or 
Florence Chamber of Commerce, free of charge, the Tenant shall make every effort to attend 
these programs. 
 
C. If Tenant fails to meet any of these requirements, then Landlord may terminate the lease 
after providing the Tenant no less than thirty (30) days written notice of Landlord’s intent to 
terminate the lease. If Tenant does not satisfy the above conditions or otherwise cure the 
deficiencies indicated in the notice within thirty (30) days, Landlord may terminate the lease as 
provided in section 17 below. 
 
The Premises shall not be used in violation of this Lease, any zoning laws applicable to the 
Premises, or in violation of any federal, state or local laws or regulations. 
 
7. PROHIBITED USES 
 
Notwithstanding the forgoing, Tenant shall not use the Leased Premises for the purposes of 
storing, manufacturing or selling any explosives, flammables or other inherently dangerous 
substance, chemical, thing or device. All uses must conform to the zoning code of the Town of 
Florence and the Silver King Market Place Reuse and Leasing Policy.   
 



Page 4 of 15 

8. SUBLEASE AND ASSIGNMENT 
 
A. Tenant shall not sublet or assign the lease without Landlord's consent. To assign this 
Lease to a business with which Tenant may merge or consolidate, to any subsidiary of Tenant, to 
any corporation under common control with Tenant, or to a purchaser of substantially all of 
Tenant's assets the Tenant must receive either written consent from the Landlord or enter into a 
new lease agreement.  
 
B. Except as set forth above, neither Tenant nor any assignee may sublease all or any part of 
the Leased Premises, or assign this Lease in whole or in part without Landlord's written consent.  
 
9. REPAIRS 
 
During the Lease term, Tenant shall make, at Tenant's expense, all necessary repairs and 
refurbishment of the Leased Premises. Repair and refurbishment shall include, but is not limited 
to, the repair and refurbishment of normal wear and tear to floors, walls, ceilings, and other parts 
of the Leased Premises caused by Tenant’s use and enjoyment of the Leased Premises, except for 
major mechanical systems, vandalism, or the roof, subject to the obligations of the parties as may 
otherwise be set forth in this Lease. 
 
10. TENANT IMPROVEMENTS  
 
A. Tenant, at Tenant's expense, shall have the right to remodel, redecorate, or make 
additions, improvements and replacements to all or any part of the Leased Premises from time-
to-time as Tenant may deem desirable (the “Tenant Modifications”), provided the same are made 
in a workmanlike manner and utilizing good quality materials. Tenant must obtain the written 
consent of Landlord prior to undertaking any such Tenant Modifications. Tenant shall have the 
right to place and install personal property, trade fixtures, equipment and other temporary 
installations in and upon the Leased Premises, and fasten the same to the premises. All personal 
property, equipment, machinery, trade fixtures and temporary installations, whether acquired by 
Tenant at the commencement of the Lease term or placed or installed on the Leased Premises by 
Tenant thereafter, shall remain Tenant's property free and clear of any claim by Landlord. Tenant 
shall have the right to remove the same at any time during the term of this Lease but not after the 
expiration thereof, provided that such removal does not cause any damage to the Premises. Any 
damage caused by the removal of Tenant’s personal property shall be repaired by Tenant at 
Tenant's expense. If Tenant fails to repair any such damage Landlord may repair the damage and 
deduct the costs thereof from Tenant’s security deposit. 
 
B. Tenant may have prepared plans and specifications for the construction of the Tenant 
Modifications, and, if so, such plans and specifications are attached hereto as Exhibit "A"  and 
incorporated herein by reference. Tenant shall obtain all certificates, permits, licenses and other 
authorizations of governmental bodies or authorities which are necessary to permit the 
construction of the improvements on the Leased Premises and shall keep the same in full force 
and effect at Tenant's cost.  
 



Page 5 of 15 

C. Tenant shall negotiate, let and supervise all contracts for the furnishing of services, labor, 
and materials for the construction of the Tenant Modifications on the Leased Premises at its sole 
cost and expense. All such contracts shall require the contracting party to guarantee performance 
and all workmanship and materials installed by it for a period of one year following the date of 
completion of construction.  Tenant shall cause all contracts to be fully and completely 
performed in a good and workmanlike manner, all to the effect that the improvements shall be 
fully and completely constructed and installed in accordance with good engineering and 
construction practice. Tenant shall include in any contract for the construction of Tenant 
Modifications a requirement that bonds in the full amount of the contract sum be furnished 
guaranteeing the faithful performance of the contract requirements and the payment of any and 
all subcontractors. 
 
D. During the course of the Tenant Modifications, Tenant shall, at its cost, keep in full force 
and effect a policy of builder's risk and liability insurance in a sum equal to three times the 
amount expended for construction of the improvements. All risk of loss or damage to the 
improvements during the course of construction shall be on Tenant with the proceeds from 
insurance thereon payable to Landlord. 
 
E. If the Tenant seeks improvements that are permanent in nature (e.g. flooring, lighting, 
HVAC, etc.), and such improvements add value to the Leased Premise, the Town may consider 
extending a lease credit to the Tenant.  Any improvements that receive a lease credit will then 
become the property of the Town.  The Tenant is solely responsible for repairing any damage 
and all costs associated with maintenance of the improvement for the duration of the Lease. 
 
F. Nothing herein shall alter the intent of the parties that Tenant shall be fully and 
completely responsible for all aspects pertaining to the construction of the Tenant Modifications 
to Leased Premises and for the payment of all costs associated therewith. Landlord shall be under 
no duty to investigate or verify Tenant's compliance with the provisions contained herein. 
Moreover, neither Tenant nor any third party may construe the permission granted Tenant 
hereunder to create any responsibility on the part of the Landlord to pay for any improvements, 
alterations or repairs occasioned by the Tenant.  
 
11. UTILITIES 
 
The Leased Premises are not separately metered, therefore, Landlord shall pay the amount due 
for charges for water, sewer, gas, electricity and separately invoice Tenant for Tenant's pro rata 
share of the charges. Tenant shall pay four hundred forty-four dollars, eight cents ($444.08) 
upon the due date for the monthly payment of the lease or the first of the month, which ever 
comes first. The Landlord, from time-to-time, may adjust the above amount to accurately reflect 
the utilities being consumed but may not adjust the amount more than two (2) times per year. 
Tenant acknowledges that the Leased Premises are designed to provide standard office or retail 
use electrical facilities and standard office lighting. Tenant shall not use any equipment or 
devices that utilize excessive electrical energy or which may, in Landlord's reasonable opinion, 
overload the wiring or interfere with electrical services to other tenants.  
 
12. SIGNAGE 



Page 6 of 15 

 
A. Exterior Signs.  Landlord will provide one exterior side located on the east side of the 
building. Tenant shall have the right, at its sole risk and expense and in conformity with 
applicable laws and ordinances, to erect and thereafter, to repair or replace, if it shall so elect, 
signs on any portion of the Leased Premises, providing that Tenant shall remove any such signs 
upon termination of this lease, and repair all damage occasioned thereby to the Leased Premises 
at its sole cost and expense. 
 
B. Interior Signs.  Tenant shall have the right, at its sole risk and expense and in conformity 
with applicable laws and ordinances, to erect, maintain, place and install its usual and customary 
signs and fixtures in the interior of the Leased Premises.  
 
13. ENTRY 
 
Landlord shall have the right to enter upon the Leased Premises at reasonable hours to inspect 
the same, provided Landlord shall not thereby unreasonably interfere with Tenant's business on 
the Leased Premises. 
 
14.  PARKING 
During the term of this Lease, Tenant shall have the non-exclusive use in common with 
Landlord, other tenants of the Building, their guests and invitees, of the non-reserved common 
automobile parking areas, driveways, and footways, subject to rules and regulations for the use 
thereof as prescribed from time-to-time by Landlord. Landlord reserves the right to designate 
parking areas within the Building or in reasonable proximity thereto, for Tenant and Tenant's 
agents and employees. 
 
15. MECHANIC’S LIENS 
 
Tenant shall pay before delinquent all sums of money which, if unpaid, would entitle any person 
to a mechanic’s or material man’s or laborer’s lien against the Leased Premises, or on Lessee’s 
interest under this Lease.  Tenant agrees that it will neither do any act, nor fail to do any act, 
which would result in the recordation of any lien against the Leased Premises or the Silver King 
Market Place as a whole. 
 
16.  INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION 
 
A. INDEMNIFICATION 
 
(i) To the fullest extent permitted by law, Tenant shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless 
the Town of Florence, its agents, officers, officials and employees from and against all tort 
claims, damages, losses and expenses (including but not limited to attorney fees, court costs, and 
the cost of appellate proceedings), relating to, arising out of, or alleged to have resulted either 
wholly or in part from the acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services of the Tenant, its 
agents, employees, contractors or subcontractors in the performance of this Agreement, and 
regardless of whether or not such claim, damages, loss or expenses are caused in part by 
Landlord.  



Page 7 of 15 

 
(ii) Tenant’s duty to defend, hold harmless and indemnify the Town of Florence, its agents, 
officers, officials and employees shall arise in connection with any tort claims, damages, losses 
or expenses that are attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, death, or injury to, 
impairment, or destruction of property including loss of use resulting therefrom, caused either 
wholly or in part by Tenant’s acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services in the 
performance of this Agreement including any employee of the Tenant or any other person for 
whose acts, errors, mistakes, omissions, work or services the Tenant may be legally liable, and 
regardless of whether or not such claim, damages, losses or expenses are caused in part by 
Landlord. 
 
(iii) The amount and type of insurance coverage requirements set forth herein will in no way 
be construed as limiting the scope of the indemnity in this paragraph. 
 
B. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 
(i) The Tenant, at Tenant’s own expense, shall purchase and maintain the herein stipulated 
minimum insurance with companies duly licensed, possessing a current A.M. Best, Inc. rating of 
“A”, or approved and licensed to do business in the State of Arizona with policies and forms 
satisfactory to the Landlord/Town of Florence. 
 
(ii) All insurance required herein shall be maintained in full force and effect during any term 
of this Lease; failure to do so may, at the sole discretion of the Town of Florence, constitute a 
material breach of this Lease. 
 
(iii) The Tenant’s insurance shall be primary insurance, and any insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by the Town of Florence shall not contribute to it.  Any failure to comply with the 
claim reporting provisions of the policies or any breach of an insurance policy warranty shall not 
affect coverage afforded under the policy to protect the Town of Florence. 
 
(iv) The insurance policies required by this Agreement shall name the Town of Florence, its 
agents, officers, officials, and employees as Additional Insured. 
 
C. REQUIRED COVERAGES 
 
(i) General Liability 
 
(a) Tenant shall, at Tenant’s expense, maintain a policy of comprehensive  public  liability 
insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 for each occurrence and with a $1,000,000 
General Aggregate Limit.  The policy shall include coverage for bodily injury, broad form 
property damage, personal injury, and blanket contractual coverage including, but not limited to, 
the liability assumed under the indemnification provisions of this Agreement, which coverage 
will be at least as broad as Insurance Service Office, Inc. Policy Form CG 000211093(October 
2001 version).  The coverage shall not exclude X, C, U. 
 
(b)  Such policy shall contain a severability of interest provision, and shall not contain a 



Page 8 of 15 

sunset provision or commutation clause, nor any provision, which would serve to limit third 
party action over claims. 
 
(c) The Commercial General Liability additional insured endorsement shall be at least as 
broad as the Insurance Service Office, Inc.’s, Additional Insured, Form B, CG2O101185 
(October 2001 version). 
 
(ii) Property Insurance 
 
(a) Landlord shall obtain and keep in force during any term of this Lease, a policy or policies 
of insurance covering loss or damage to the Leased Premises, in the amount of the full 
replacement value thereof, providing protection against all perils included within the 
classification of fire, flood, extended coverage, vandalism, malicious mischief and special 
extended perils. 
 
(b) Tenant shall obtain and keep in force during any term of this Lease, a policy or policies 
of insurance covering loss or damage to the contents of the Leased premises. Tenant agrees that 
Landlord shall not be liable for injury to Tenant’s business or any loss of income there from, or 
for loss or damage to goods, wares, merchandise or other property in or on the Leased premises 
owned or belonging to Tenant, Tenant’s employees, invitees, customers, or any other person in 
or about the Leased Premises; nor shall Landlord be liable for injury to the person of Tenant, 
Tenant’s employees, agents or contractors, whether such damage or injury to persons or property 
is caused by or results from fire, steam, electricity,  gas, water or rain, or from the breakage, 
leakage, obstruction, or other defects of pipes, sprinklers, wires, appliances, plumbing, air 
conditioning, or light fixtures or from any other cause; or whether the said damage or injury to 
person or property results from conditions arising upon the Leased Premises or from other 
sources or places, and regardless of whether the cause of such damage or injury or the means of 
repairing the same is inaccessible to Tenant. 
 
(iii) Certificates of Insurance 
 
(a) Prior to delivery of possession of the Leased Premises to Tenant, Tenant shall furnish the 
Landlord/Town of Florence with Certificates of Insurance, or formal endorsements as required 
by this Lease, issued by Tenant’s insurer(s), as evidence that policies providing the required 
coverage, conditions and limits required by this Lease are in full force and effect. 
 
(b) In the event any insurance policy (ies) required by this Lease is (are) written on a “claims 
made" basis, coverage shall extend for two years past the expiration of any term of this Lease as 
evidenced by annual Certificates of Insurance. 
 
(c) If a policy does expire during any term of this Lease, a renewal certificate must be sent to 
the Town of Florence fifteen (15) days prior to the expiration date. 
 
 
17. DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 
 



Page 9 of 15 

A. DEFAULTS 
 
 The occurrence of any one or more of the following events shall constitute a material 
default and breach of this Lease by Tenant: 
 
(i) The vacating or abandonment of the Leased Premises by Tenant; 
 
(ii) The failure by Tenant to make any payment of rent or any other payment required to be 
made by Tenant hereunder, as and when due; 
 
(iii) The failure by Tenant to observe or perform any of the covenants, conditions, or 
provisions of this Lease to be observed or performed by Tenant, other than described in 
subsection (A) above, where such failure shall continue for a period of fifteen (15) days after 
written notice hereof from Landlord to Tenant; provided, however, that if the nature of Tenant’s 
default is such that more than fifteen (15) days are reasonably required for its cure, then Tenant 
shall not be deemed to be in default if Tenant commenced such cure within said fifteen (15) day 
period and thereafter diligently prosecutes such cure to completion. 
 
(iv) The making by Tenant of any general arrangement for the benefit of creditors; the filing 
by or against Tenant of a petition to have Tenant adjudged a bankrupt or a petition for 
reorganization or arrangement under any law relating to bankruptcy (unless, in the case of a 
petition filed against Tenant, the same is dismissed within sixty (60) days); the appointment of a 
trustee or receiver to take possession of substantially all of Tenants’ assets, located at the Leased 
Premises, or, of Tenant’s interest in this Lease, where possession is not restored to Tenant within 
thirty (30) days; or, the attachment, execution, or other judicial seizure of substantially all of 
Tenants’ assets located at the Leased Premises or of Tenants’ interest in this Lease where such 
seizure is not discharged within thirty (30) days. 
 
(v)  The filing or recordation of a lien against the Leased Premises or the Silver King Market 
Place as a whole due to any action or inaction of Tenant. 
 
B.  REMEDIES 
 
(i) In the event of any such material default or breach by Tenant, Landlord may at any time 
thereafter, with or without notice or demand and without limiting Landlord in the exercise of any 
right or remedy which Landlord may have by reason of such default or breach: 
 
(ii) Terminate Tenants’ right to possession of the Leased Premises by any lawful means in 
which case this Lease shall terminate and Tenant shall immediately surrender possession of the 
Leased Premises to Landlord. In such event Landlord shall be entitled to recover from Tenants 
all damages incurred by Landlord by reason of Tenants’ default, including but not limited to, the 
cost or recovering possession of the Premises; expenses of reletting, including necessary 
renovation and alteration of the Premises; reasonable attorney’s fees; and any real estate 
commission actually paid; the worth at the time of award by the court having jurisdiction thereof 
of the amount by which the unpaid rent for the balance of the term after the time of such award 
exceeds the amount of such rental loss for the same period that Tenant provides could be 



Page 10 of 15 

reasonably avoided. In the event Tenant shall have abandoned the Premises, Landlord shall have 
the option of 1) retaking possession of the Premises and recovering from Tenant the amount 
specified in this paragraph, or 2) proceeding under subsection 18 below. 
 
(iii) Maintain Tenant’s right to possession in which case this Lease shall remain in effect 
whether or not Tenant shall have abandoned the Premises. In such event, Landlord shall be 
entitled to enforce all of Landlord’s rights and remedies under this Lease, including the right to 
recover the rent as it becomes due hereunder. 
 
(iv) Pursue any other remedy now or hereafter available to Landlord under the laws or 
judicial decisions of the State of Arizona, including the right to declare a landlord’s lien on 
Tenant’s personal property located on the Leased Premises. Where a landlord’s lien is declared 
by Landlord, Landlord may, without notice or demand to Tenants, terminate Tenant’s right to 
possession of the premises until Landlord has secured sufficient personal property or full 
payment of rent to satisfy the amount of rent owed. Should Landlord declare a landlord’s lien on 
the Leased Premises pursuant to this paragraph, the Lease shall not be considered terminated, 
and Landlord shall have a right to recover rent as it becomes due. 
 
C. DEFAULT BY LANDLORD 
 
(i) Landlord shall not be in default unless Landlord fails to perform obligations required of 
Landlord within a reasonable time, but in no event later than fifteen (15) days after written notice 
by Tenant to Landlord and to the holder of any first mortgage or deed of trust covering the 
Premises whose name and address shall have theretofore been furnished to Tenant in writing, 
specifying wherein Landlord has failed to perform such obligations; provided however, that if 
the nature of Landlord’s obligation is such that more than fifteen (15) days are required for 
performance, then Landlord shall not be in default if Landlord commences performance within 
such thirty day period and thereafter diligently prosecutes the same to completion. If Landlord 
does not perform, the holder of any first mortgage may perform in Landlord’s place and Tenant 
must accept such performance. 
 
D. HOLDOVER BY TENANT 
 
(i) If Lessee shall hold over after expiration of the Initial Term, or any extension of the 
Initial Term, such tenancy shall be from month-to-month only upon such terms, covenants, and 
conditions as set forth herein except for those relating to the term of the Lease. Any such month-
to-month tenancy may be terminated by Landlord upon thirty (30) days notice to Tenant. 
However, nothing herein shall be construed as or deemed a waiver of any rights of Landlord to 
take such action in law or equity as Landlord may have under the provisions of this Lease or 
otherwise.  
 
E. BANKRUPTCY OF TENANT 
 
(i) If Lessee should make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, or file a 
voluntary petition in bankruptcy, or be adjudicated bankrupt or insolvent, or permit a receiver to 
be appointed to take possession of a substantial portion of the Lessees’ assets or of this 



Page 11 of 15 

leasehold, and such bankruptcy, insolvency or receivership proceedings not be dismissed within 
thirty days, then Lessor may, without notice or demand, terminate this Lease and forthwith re-
enter and repossess the demised premises and remove all persons, and under no circumstances 
shall this Lease be assigned or transferred by operation of law. 
 
18. DAMAGE AND DESTRUCTION 
 
Subject to the Insurance provisions contained herein, if the Leased Premises or any part thereof 
or any appurtenance thereto is so damaged by fire, casualty or structural defects that the same 
cannot be used for Tenant's purposes, then Tenant shall have the right within ninety (90) days 
following damage to elect by notice to Landlord to terminate this Lease as of the date of such 
damage. In the event of minor damage to any part of the Leased Premises, and if such damage 
does not render the Leased Premises unusable for Tenant's purposes, Landlord shall promptly 
repair such damage at the cost of the Landlord. In making the repairs called for in this paragraph, 
Landlord shall not be liable for any delays resulting from strikes, governmental restrictions, 
inability to obtain necessary materials or labor or other matters which are beyond the reasonable 
control of Landlord. Tenant shall be relieved from paying rent and other charges during any 
portion of the Lease term that the Leased Premises are inoperable or unfit for occupancy, or use, 
in whole or in part, for Tenant's purposes. Rentals and other charges paid in advance for any such 
periods shall be credited on the next ensuing payments, if any, but if no further payments are to 
be made, any such advance payments shall be refunded to Tenant subject to the provisions of this 
Lease which may permit Landlord to retain such payments. The provisions of this paragraph 
extend not only to the matters aforesaid, but also to any occurrence which is beyond Tenant's 
reasonable control and which renders the Leased Premises, or any appurtenance thereto, 
inoperable or unfit for occupancy or use, in whole or in part, for Tenant's purposes. 
 
19. TITLE 
 
A.   Subordination.  Tenant shall, upon the request of Landlord in writing, subordinate this 
Lease to the lien of any present or future institutional mortgage upon the Leased Premises 
irrespective of the time of execution or the time of recording of any such mortgage. Provided, 
however, that as a condition to such subordination, the holder of any such mortgage shall enter 
first into a written agreement with Tenant in form suitable for recording to the effect that: 
 
(i)   Foreclosure.  In the event of foreclosure or other action taken under the mortgage by the 
holder thereof, this Lease and the rights of Tenant hereunder shall not be disturbed but shall 
continue in full force and effect so long as Tenant shall not be in default hereunder; and  
 
(ii)  Such holder shall permit insurance proceeds and condemnation proceeds to be used for 
any restoration and repair required by the Damage and Insurance provisions of this Lease.  
Tenant agrees that if the mortgagee or any person claiming under the mortgagee shall succeed to 
the interest of Landlord in this lease, Tenant will attorn to and recognize said mortgagee or 
person as its Landlord under the terms of this Lease, provided that said mortgagee or person for 
the period during which said mortgagee or person respectively shall be in possession of the 
Leased Premises and thereafter their respective successors in interest shall assume all of the 
obligations of Landlord hereunder. The word "mortgage", as used herein includes mortgages, 



Page 12 of 15 

deeds of trust or other similar instruments, and modifications, and extensions thereof. The term 
"institutional mortgage" means a mortgage securing a loan from a bank (commercial or savings) 
or trust company, insurance company or pension trust or any other lender institutional in nature 
and constituting a lien upon the Leased Premises.  
 
C.   Quiet Enjoyment.  Landlord covenants and agrees that upon Tenant paying the rent and 
observing and performing all of the terms, covenants and conditions on Tenant's part to be 
observed and performed hereunder, that Tenant may peaceably and quietly have, hold, occupy 
and enjoy the Leased Premises in accordance with the terms of this Lease without hindrance or 
molestation from Landlord or any persons lawfully claiming through Landlord. 
 
20. ATTORNEY’S FEES 
 
In the event of any legal action between Landlord and Tenant to enforce any of the provisions 
and/or rights hereunder, the unsuccessful party to such action agrees to pay to the other party all 
costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney’s fees incurred in prosecuting or defending 
such action, and if judgment is recovered in such action or proceeding, such costs, expenses and 
attorney’s fees shall be included in and as a part of such judgment. 
 
21. NOTICES 
 
Any notice required to be given by or to either Landlord or Tenant pursuant to this Lease, shall 
be in writing and shall be forwarded by certified mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 
 
For Landlord:      For Tenant: 
        
Town of Florence     Carol Johnson 
Town Manager     PO Box 2173 
PO Box 2670      45 Phoenix Street #1  
775 North Main Street     Florence, AZ 85132 
Florence, AZ 85132     520-233-6375 
520-868-7500      
 
22. WAIVER 
 
 A waiver of any breach of this Lease, or of any of the terms or conditions by either party 
hereto, shall not be deemed a waiver of any repetition of such breach or in any way affect any 
other terms or conditions hereof. No waiver shall be valid or binding unless it shall be in writing 
and signed by the parties. 
 
  



Page 13 of 15 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF , Landlord and Tenant have executed this Lease as of the day and 
year first written above. 
 
LANDLORD: TOWN OF FLORENCE, an Arizona municipal co rporation 
 
 
            
Tom J. Rankin, Mayor   Date 
 
    
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
            
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk   James E. Mannato, Town Attorney 



Page 14 of 15 

TENANT: CAROL JOHNSON, a single woman, on her own behalf 
 
 
By:       
 
Its:     Owner     
 
Date:         
 
 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 
    )  ss. 
County of Pinal   ) 
 
On this ____ day of    , 2012, before me, the undersigned Notary Public, 
personally appeared Carol Johnson, and that as such, being authorized so to do, executed the 
foregoing instrument for the purpose therein contained. 
 
(Seal and Expiration Date) 
 
             
      Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 
 
 
      



EXHIBIT A 
 

Tenant Modifications 
 

[PLACE HOLDER FOR ALL PERMANENT TENANT IMPROVEMENTS] 



 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
7c. 

 

MEETING DATE:  July 15, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Human Resources 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Scott Barber, HR Director 
 
SUBJECT:    Resolution No. 1405-13: Revised FY 2013-2014  
                      Employee Classification Plan  

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject:  Resolution No. 1405-13  Revised FY2013-2014 Classification Plan            Meeting Date:  July 15, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: 
 
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1405-13:  A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF 
FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, ARIZONA, ADOPTING THE REVISED TOWN OF 
FLORENCE FY2013-2014 EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATION PLAN. 
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
 
Council adopted the FY2013-2014 Employee Compensation and Classification Plans at 
the June 17, 2013 meeting.  Staff recently discovered that changes to the designations 
of positions as “Classified” or “Unclassified” made necessary by applicable provisions of 
the new Personnel Policy were inadvertently omitted.  While there is no legal conflict 
between the Personnel Policy and the Classification Plan because the Policy definition 
of which employees are “Classified” and which are “Unclassified” is ultimately what 
counts, approving a fully correct Classification Plan is preferred.  Staff is therefore 
asking for adoption of the revised document which correctly reflects these changes 
made by the new Personnel Policy. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends adoption of Resolution No. 1405-13, approving the revised FY2013-
2014 Employee Classification Plan. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Resolution No. 1405-13 
Revised Town of Florence, FY2013-2014 Classification Plan 



TOWN OF FLORENCE 
RESOLUTION NO. 1405-13 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF FLORENCE, PINAL COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, ADOPTING THE REVISED TOWN OF FLORENCE FY2013-
2014 EMPLOYEE CLASSIFICATION PLAN.   

 
WHEREAS, it has been brought to the attention of the Mayor and Council that it 

is necessary and desirable that the Town of Florence approve the Employee 
Classification Plan and Compensation Plan each year, such action having been taken 
on June 17, 2013; and    
 

WHEREAS, it has been brought to the attention of the Mayor and Council that 
certain information on the Employee Classification Plan was inadvertently not amended 
to reflect the new Personnel Policy recently approved by the Mayor and Council; and   
 

WHEREAS, staff has revised the Employee Classification Plan and has 
requested the revised Plan now be approved.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and Council of the Town 
of Florence, hereby adopts the revised Employee Classification Plan for Fiscal Year 
2013-2014. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of the Town of Florence, 
Arizona, this 15th day of July, 2013. 
 
 
 
       ______      
       Tom J. Rankin, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
    
 
   _______       _______  
Lisa Garcia, Town Clerk     James E. Mannato, Town Attorney 











 

 

TOWN OF FLORENCE 
COUNCIL ACTION FORM 

AGENDA ITEM 
7d.  

MEETING DATE:  July 15, 2013 
 
DEPARTMENT:  Police 
 
STAFF PRESENTER:  Daniel Hughes, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT:    Law Enforcement Agreement between the  
Tohono O’Odham Nation and the Town of Florence 

 Action 
 Information Only 
 Public Hearing 
 Resolution 
 Ordinance   

 Regulatory   

 1st Reading  

 2nd Reading 
 Other 

 

Subject: Tohono O’Odham Agreement  Meeting Date: July 15, 2013 
Page 1 of 1 

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:  
 
To accept the attached Mutual Protection and Law Enforcement Agreement between 
the Tohono O’Odham Nations and Town of Florence.   
 
BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION:   
 
The Tohono O’Odham Indian Nation has residential properties within Florence Town 
limits.  While T.O. Nation is responsible for the safety and security of their tribal 
members the nearest tribal police officer is located more than two hours away from the 
residents located within the Town of Florence.   The Tohono O’Odham Nation has 
requested the Florence Police Department assist them as first responders should the 
need arise.  In exchange, the Tohono O’Odham Nation will respond and assist the 
Florence Police Department as part of this agreement.   Currently the Florence Police 
Department makes routine patrols through the Tohono O’Odham properties as part of 
our Community Policing philosophy.   During 2012 Florence Police officers had 13 calls 
for service in this area.    
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:    
 
Authorization to enter into a three-year agreement with the Tohono O’Odham Nation for 
Mutual Protection and Law Enforcement. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 
Mutual Protection and Law Enforcement Agreement  
 



1 of 3 

   
 

MUTUAL PROTECTION AND 
LAW ENFORCEMENT AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE 
TOHONO O’ODHAM NATION 

AND THE 
TOWN OF FLORENCE 

 
 
 

THIS AGREEMENT , entered into as of the _____ day of _________________ 2013 
between the TOHONO O'ODHAM NATION , hereinafter referred to as the "NATION"  and 
the TOWN OF FLORENCE , a political subdivision of the State of Arizona, hereinafter 
referred to as "FLORENCE." 
 

W I T N E S S E T H :  
 

WHEREAS , it is to the mutual benefit of the parties hereto that they enter into an 
agreement of mutual protection and assistance in the field of law enforcement. 
 

WHEREAS, FLORENCE, by Resolution No. __________ of the Town of Florence 
and the NATION, by Resolution No. ___________ of the Tohono O'odham Legislative 
Council, true and correct copies of which are attached hereto, have approved this joint 
exercise of powers; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, the TOWN OF FLORENCE by virtue of and pursuant to the 
provisions of A.R.S § 11-951, et seq., and A.R.S § 13-3872, et seq., and the NATION, by 
virtue of and pursuant to the authority contained under the Tohono O'odham Constitution, 
Article VI, Section 1(f) and Section 1.3 of the Nation's Criminal Code, do hereby enter into 
this Agreement in order to more efficiently and economically facilitate their capabilities to 
provide for the maximum amount of protection for public health, safety and welfare of their 
citizens; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed by the parties hereto: 
 

1. Commencing on the effective date prescribed in Section 10 and for a period of 
three (3) years thereafter, FLORENCE and the NATION agree to cooperate and assist 
each other to their mutual benefit in the field of law enforcement. 
 

2. The NATION, through its duly designated and employed tr ibal police 
officer(s), agrees to assist and aid the officer(s) of FLORENCE within one mile of the 
boundaries of Florence Village in Pinal County, Arizona, when called upon so to do by a 
duly commissioned and regularly employed officer of FLORENCE, provided that the call 
does not conflict with their then present duties within the Nation. 
 

3. FLORENCE, through its duly designated and employed law enforcement 
officer(s), agrees to assist and aid the NATION within the boundaries of Florence Village in 
Pinal County, Arizona, when called upon so to do by a duly commissioned and regularly 
employed officer of the NATION, provided that the call, including 911 calls, does not  



2 of 3 

 
conflict with their then present duties. Officers of FLORENCE may respond to 911 calls 
received directly from Florence Village residents. FLORENCE officers shall assist in law 
enforcement for the NATION in relation to all crimes set forth in the Nation's Criminal 
Code. 
 

4. In addition, FLORENCE officers who are deputized by the Bureau of Indian Affairs 
with a Special Law Enforcement Commission, and have been trained by the 
NATION, shall provide police services within Florence Village to the same extent as they 
provide police services in the town of Florence. 
 

5. Upon the duly authorized request of a law enforcement officer of FLORENCE to a 
law enforcement officer of the NATION for aid, the officer of the NATION shall assist in law 
enforcement for FLORENCE  in relation to all offenses defined as crimes by the State of 
Arizona. 
 

6. The NATION  agrees to hire and pay the entire salary of the tribal police 
officer(s) without compensation from FLORENCE, and FLORENCE agrees to hire and pay 
the ent i re  sa lar ies of  the duly commiss ioned of f icer (s)  of  FLORENCE  wi thout  
compensat ion f rom the NATION  in the exercise of  any of  the provis ions of  this 
AGREEMENT. 
 

7. Officers of either party shall have the authority to make arrests within the 
jurisdiction of the other party and to book the suspect in the detention facility of either 
jurisdiction. The NATION  will provide its booking forms to FLORENCE  for this purpose. 
FLORENCE  shall notify the NATION  immediately of such an arrest and booking and the 
NATION  shall as soon as possible send an officer to take custody of the suspect. In no 
event shall FLORENCE  be required to detain a suspect under this agreement 
more than twenty four (24) hours. If the NATION  does not pick up such suspect 
within twenty four (24) hours, FLORENCE shall release the suspect. 
 

8. Nothing contained herein shall be construed as an employment contract of 
individual officers of either FLORENCE or the NATION by the other, and when an officer of 
either party acts under the authority or on behalf of the other party, it shall be under the 
direct control and supervision of the party having jurisdiction of the offense, except as 
otherwise specifically provided herein. 
 

9. This Agreement may be canceled or terminated by either party at any time 
upon thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail; notices are to be addressed to: 
Chief of Police Daniel Hughes, Florence, Arizona, on behalf of FLORENCE and to 
the NATION, notices shall be addressed to: Chief of Police Joseph Delgado, 
Tohono O'odham Nation, Sells, Arizona. The provisions of this agreement may be 
amended only upon mutual written agreement of both parties. 
 

10. This Agreement shall become effective ten (10) days after the filing of this 
Agreement with the Secretary of State and after proper approval by the Town of Florence and 
the Tohono O'odham Legislative Council. 
 

11. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to cede any jurisdiction of either party or to 
waive any immunities from suit or any other immunity possessed by a party. 
 



3 of 3 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed and approved by the parties 
and persons whose signatures appear below. 
 
 

TOHONO O'ODHAM NATION TOWN OF FLORENCE, a political  
subdivision of the State of Arizona 

 
 
 

By:   By:  
 Ned Norris, Jr. 

Chairman 
Tohono O’odham Nation 

  Tom J. Rankin 
Mayor 

 
 

Date:   Date:  
 
 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
 

 By:  
  Lisa Garcia 

Town Clerk 
 
 

   Date:  
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 

By:   By:  
 Jonathan L. Jantzen 

Attorney General 
Tohono O’odham Nation 

  James E. Mannato 
Florence Town Attorney 

 






























	July 15, 2013 Agenda
	Page 2

	6. PUBLIC HEARING AND PRESENTATIONS
	6a. Healing Healthcare 3 Inc. MM CUP
	6c. Chamber of Commerce Annual Report

	7. CONSENT
	7a. Greater Florence Chamber of Commerce Sp Event Lic
	7b. Silver King Lease Agreement
	7c. Resolution No. 1405-13 Revised Classification Plan
	7d. Tohono O'Odham Mutual Protection Law Enforcement Agreement
	7e i. September 25, 2012 Minutes PZ
	7e ii. December  18, 2012 Minutes RC





